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Willow Grove Circa 1770-1790
Denton

Private

Willow Grove, like Oak Lawn, is situated inland from the major
water ways of the County. It is one of the major dwellings of the
county and resembles two extant dwellings .in Talbot County in plan,
Pleasant Valley, built 1774, and Galloway, built around 1780.

Col. Matthew Driver constructed the mansion. Subsequently, he had
his lands resurveyed in 1795 under the name "Willow Grove."

The plan of the dwelling consists of four rooms on each floor,
plus the wing. One of the major rooms houses the great delicate
stair with paneled spandrel. Each of the other rooms retain original
mantels, trim, paneled chimney breasts, etc. Both facades of the
building have semicircular transoms above the broad paneled doors.
Willow Grove possesses a secondary stair in the southeast room to
the chamber above, a feature similar to Oak Lawn before the latter
was remodeled.

Col. Matthew Driver was a very significant figure in early
Caroline County, being one of the first Justices for the Court in
1774 and serving as a member of the Committee of Observation in
1775 and serving subsequent positions pertaining to military and
political endeavors.

Willow Grove has been owned by the ancestors of the present
owner since 1829.

It is on the National Register of Historic &Sites—=and Places.
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attic. Two tall interior chimneys are enclosed within-.the

southwest gable ancd one within the northeast cable.-



- Woodwork in the south room consists of a heavy molded base-

) T (Chuck Onej CAR,'%
[j Excellent 33 Good [ Faie [ Detericeated Ruins Blaex 4 ’
CONDITION a1 : o C] P iy
. {Check Onc) (Check Ona)
CJ Altered {3 Unolrered {1 Moved E Criginal Sire
SESCRIBE THE PRESENT ;rao umas.ua.. i’a! &nq u-—;) s-ﬂ- t:“iL ﬁ.r'Pl—_:\n-z.McE

Willew Crove is cone cf the few Ceorgian—style houses
in Caroline County, Maryland. A documented date of con-
struction has not yet been discovered, but architecturatl
regional details indicate it was constructed between 1780 and
1790. The floor plan and many details are similar to those
in the Baynaxd ilousc, constructed in 1788, in Fent Countwv,
Delawvare, two miles away.

The two-story brick house covered with a thin coat of
stucco, measures thirty-seven feet long and thirtv—-four feet
deep. The northwest facade is five bays long with central
door and the southeast facade is four bays leng. The house
is three bays deep and has a two-story, three-bay brick kitchej
wing on the northwest which appears similar to a hyvhen and
a kitchen, cdue to a set-back in the wall.

Basenrent windows are placed behind herizontal wooden
grilles.- There is ho water table, but there is a belt course
on three sides of the main block and on the northwest facea-lce
of the kitchen. The central doors have semicircular arches
with fanllgntsltrl med with a keystone and impost bhlocks
the same shape as the keystone. The doors and door jarbs
are all paneled. Portions of the southeast cdoor trim have
been reconstructed.

The windows have two-over-two sash and there are scme
which have six-over-six sasnhn—--the original sash woulé havc
had nine—cver—nine light with paneled shutters. The main
cornice has a "course" of dentils and shaped mocillions.
Green colored asphalt shlngles cover the steeply pitched
'A' roof. Two windows in cach of the gable ends light the
attic. Two tall interior chimneys are enclosed withinsthe
southwest gable anc one within the northeast cable.

The northwest entrance opens into a rectancular stair
hall. The staircase ascends on three sides of the room.
The soffit of the staircase has raised panels and the stop
ends have strapwork scrolls. The staircase has turned newc!
posts and sguare balustexrs. The rail rises above cach corner
post and the rail and bottom step terminate in a "volute"” with
ten balusters. Only one turned drop finial remains beneath
one of the corner posts.

Directly opposite the main door is an arch openinc into
a small sguare space with a vaulted ceiling, which in turn
leads to the largest of the four first-story rooms. Thero
is an interiox transom above the door ifto this room {similar
to that within "Pleasant Valley," Talbot County) and re-
peating the design of the two exterior doors of the house.

board, three-part chair rail and trim; recessed panel
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Willow Grove is important for its Georgian-style archi-
tecture as well as the importance of the builder, Matthew
Driver, Jr., in the growth of the new nation ané in the
growth of the then newly formed Caroline County, Marylend.

Matthew Driver, Jdr., born on August 30, 1740, married
John Bayard's daughter, Margaret Casson. Two tracts oF lant
were acouired bv this marriage which were later to be part
of "Willow Grove." Several other pieces of property ad-
jacent to tie original two tracts were purchased between 17’
and 1793 making a total of 675 ecres which Driver caused to
be resurveved in 1795 under the name of "Willow Grove."

in 1774 Mathew Driver, Jx., was appointed Justice of tl
first Caroline County Court by the Governcr of the Frovince
cf Maryland. Ee was appointed a member of the House of
Delegates as well as Chairman of Safety for Caroline Countw
and Captain of the Militia of Caroline County. In the
following year he was appointed Lieutenant Colonel and was
second in command to Colonel William Whitely; the latter
was Commander-in-Chief of both battalions of the Militia
in Caroline County. Driver was comnissioned as a full -
Colonel in 1778 by the House of Delegates and in 1779 was
cormmissioned to pay soldiers of the Fifth and Seventh Marv-
land Regiments for service in the American Revolution.

In 1782, he subscribed thirty pounds to the founding
and support of Washington College, Chestertown, Kent Counts
Maryland, and in 1786 he gave a two-acre lot to Caroline
County for the erecticn of the county's first courthouse.

With his son-in-law, Peter Edmonson, and two other
merbers from Caroline County, Driver ratified the United
States Constitution at the State Convention in 1788.

o Matthew Driver, Jr., died at Willow Grove on July "23,
1798 and left the plantation and house to his wife for
her natural life after which time his son, Joshua, inherite
it.
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2 BISLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES

Recorder:

Land Records, Hall of Recorcs,

Land Records, Dorchester County
Maryland.
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GEOGRAPHICAL DATA

T LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE COORDINATLES !

DEFINING A RECTANGLE LOCATING THE PROPERTY

TLATITUDE AND LONGITUDE COORDINA TES
0 DEFINING THE CENTER POINT OF 4 PROMCRTY
OF LESS THAN TFN ACRES

- — —

CORMNESR LATITUDE LONGITUDE R LATITUCE LONGITLUDL
Degrees Minutes Seconds | Degrees Minutes Secands Degrees Minutes Seccnds | Degrees Minutes Seconds
NW 382, 56+ 07* | 75 < 46 * 23 9 s " ° . -
NE 38 55° S50% | 75 45 *.56 »
SE 382 55: 20~ | 75 46 : 28 -
sw 38 55° 36-1 75+ 46 - 54 -
ADFPROXIMATE ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY: 25 acres
LIST ALL STATES AND COUN TIES FOR PROF‘ERT!ES O\E ﬁ'.._#-PPI‘{G ST‘-I" o& COUHTY BOUNDARIES
STATE: ey casf [county T T T T eam
STATLC: C-(-T.(-J.T.“CCIJNT‘&:'__ CODFE
STATL: CODF COUNTY. COOK
STATE: CODE COUNTY: COCE
[11. FORM PREPARED BY o ¥
MAME AND TITLE:
Mrs. Preston Parish, Keeper of the Maryland Registerx
OQRGAMIJATION LATE
Maryland Historical Trust " Jan. 13, 1972
STREET AND NUMBER:
94 College Avenue
CITY OR TOaN: . [stare "1 coun
Annapolis Maryland 24
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STATE LIAISON OFFICER CERTIFIEI?!QN

NATIOMAL REGISTER VERIFICATION

As the Jdesignated Stute Liaison Officer for the Nu-
tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Loaw
89-655), 1 hereby nominate this property for inclusion
in the National Register and certify that it has bueen
evaluated according to the criteria and procedures set
forth by the National Park Service. T1he recomniended
'I.c\'el of significance of this nomination is:

Natiomal State  [3¢

7 O/‘upanjf J& c(m,{ v’

Orlando Ridout IV

hol

T.owal

Titl-

__State Liaison Officer
for Maryland

Date

_January 14, 1972

I hereby certifly that this property is included in the

National Register.

Chief, Oftice of Archeology and Historic Prescrvation

e

ATTEST: -

hm\per of The National Register

Laste

G gt .nal
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Willow Grove

#7. DESCRIPTION continued

window jambs; pilasters beneath the window trim; and a cove
cornice. The mantel has molded conscles supporting the shelf;
between the consoles is a strapwork frieze of interlocking
"wall of troy" design.

The west room off the stair hall has a paneled overmantel
with crossettes and a mantel shelf atop fluted blocks. The
other trim is similar to that of the south room. A narrow
passacge is located beneath the third flight of stairs to the
second story, between the hall and the east room. The passacec
leads to.the kitchen wing and the east room. The east room
has a heavy chair rail and raisec¢ panel chimney breast. There
is a secondary, enclosed staircase in the west corner of the
east room leading to the becdroom directly above.

There are now (1971) two rooms only in the kitchen wing
where formerly there were two rooms and a narrow passace.
Each of the two former rooms had a fireplace and plain trimrm.
A mociern bath and porch open off these two rooms. 2MAn enclosen
stair between the two rooms leads to tinv sleeping rooms ahove.

The second story of the main part has the same general
floor plan as the first floor, but the trim in each room is
plainer and there is no cornice. The main staircase continues
to the attic where there are twe unfinished rooms.

i8. SIGNIFICANCE continued

Joshua Driver was not as active ‘as his father in public
affairs but in 1800 he assisted in surveying the town of
Denton with six others so appointed. He is said to bhe an
'Attorney-at-law' in a deed of 1810. His half-brother,
Matthew Driver III was appointed the Trustee to settle Joshua's
estate in 1818. HMatthew III subseguently sold the property to
James Sangston who had married Ann Robinson, the grand-
cdaughter of Matthew Driver, Jr. Sangston sold it to Thomas S.
Carter in 1829, who in turn sold it to James Carter in 1840,
James Carter's holdings of 1245 acres were divided at the .
time of his death, his daughter Ellen M. Horsev obtaining that
portion of "Willow Grove" with the dwelling. It has since
passed through four generations of the Horsey family to the
present owner, Thomas C. Horsey, Jr.

= (1 of 2 continuation shecets)
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Willow Grove

£0 . REFERENCES continued
Will Records, Caroline County Courthouse, Denton, Marvland

Forman, Henry Chandlee, Early Manor and Plantation Houses of
Maryland, Easton, Md.: the author, 1934.
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